
1 
 

   
 
 

Mayor Alan Fiers 
Vice Mayor Scott McCranels 

Commissioner Tracy Larcher                                      Town Administrator Wendy Wells      
Commissioner Janet Kortenhaus                                Town Attorney Keith Davis 
Commissioner Brian Tyler                                                   Town Clerk Jude M. Goudreau    

 
PLEASE NOTE: THIS MEETING MAY BE CONDUCTED USING COMMUNICATION MEDIA TECHNOLOGY 

Join information 
Meeting link: 
https://townofpalmbeachshores.my.webex.com/townofpalmbeachshores.my/j.php?MTID=m06464903b6ff173
d9847e6606e347491       Meeting number:2631 800 9840    Password:0523 
Join by phone   +1-408-418-9388 United States Toll     Access code: 2631 800 9840 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Agenda 
 
 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER 
a) Pledge of Allegiance 
b) Roll Call 

 
2) APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA (additions, substitutions, deletions) 

 
3) APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Commission Meeting Minutes, April 25 ,2022 
b) Agreement with Phillips and Jordan for Hurricane/Disaster Debris Removal.  
c) Special Events Permit Number 22-05 Requested by Sailfish Marina for a Fishing Tournament 

on June 23-25th with approximately 300 participants. Fees have been paid and Insurance has 
been provided.  

 

4) DEPARTMENT AND BOARD REPORTS 
 
o Financial Reports: 
o April 2022  

 
o Staff Reports: 
o Sheriff’s Department 

o Fire Department  
o Public Works 
o Town Clerk 
o Planning and Zoning Chairman 
o Town Attorney 

 
 

 

Monday, May 23, 2022, 7 pm  

Regular Commission Meeting Agenda  

     Town Hall Commission Chambers 

247 Edwards Lane 

         Palm Beach Shores, FL  33404 

https://townofpalmbeachshores.my.webex.com/townofpalmbeachshores.my/j.php?MTID=m06464903b6ff173d9847e6606e347491
https://townofpalmbeachshores.my.webex.com/townofpalmbeachshores.my/j.php?MTID=m06464903b6ff173d9847e6606e347491


2 
 

5) COMMISSION REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor’s Updates: 
o Underground Project  
o Water Main Replacement  

 
6) OTHER BUSINESS  

o Presentation:  Redevelopment at 123 Ocean Drive, by Developers and Owner.   
o Vote: Authorize additional opioids settlement agreements.  

 
7) RESOLUTIONS:  

 
Resolution: R-7-22  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, 
FLORIDA, CREATING AN AD HOC COMMITTEE ON INLET PARK ENCROACHMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR COMMITTEE COMPOSITION, AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITIES; 
PROVIDING FOR COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET OF SAID 
COMMITTEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

8) ORDINANCES: 
 

Second Reading:  ORDINANCE NO. O-2-22 

     AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH 
SHORES, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 14. BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 
REGULATIONS. ARTICLE III BUILDING STANDARDS. SEC. 14-108 LOCAL 
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 1 ADMINISTRATION OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE 
ADOPTED. SECTION 109 FEES. BY REQUIRING ADJUSTMENTS TO PERMIT FEES 
PAID PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CO OR EQUIVALENT IN ORDER TO ENSURE 
PAYMENT OF CORRECT FEES; PROVIDING THAT EACH AND EVERY OTHER 
SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF CHAPTER 14 SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND 
EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
Second Reading: ORDINANCE NO. O-3-22 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX A. ZONING AT SECTION IV. BASIC RESTRICTIONS FOR 
ALL DISTRICTS. AT PF.4.6. GRADE ELEVATIONS. TO ALLOW ADDITIONS TO SINGLE-FAMILY 
STRUCTURES IN ZONING DISTRICT A TO MATCH THE EXISTING GRADE AND FINISHED 
FIRST FLOOR ELEVATIONS SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS AND AT SECTION XIII. 
NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS AND USES. AT PF. 13.2. NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS. TO 
ADD AN ALLOWANCE FOR ADDITIONS TO SINGLE-FAMILY HOUSES IN ZONING DISTRICT A 
TO BE BUILT TO MATCH THE NONCONFORMING GRADE AND FINISHED FIRST FLOOR 
ELEVATION; PROVIDING THAT EACH AND EVERY OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF 
APPENDIX A SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED; 
PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
First Reading:  ORDINANCE NO O-04-22  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH 
SHORES, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 78. VEGETATION. AT ARTICLE III. 
LANDSCAPING., SECTION 78-77.1. – DESIGN GUIDELINES. TO REQUIRE THE 
INSTALLATION OF ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPING PLACED INTERMITTENTLY AGAINST 
LONGER EXPANSES OF BUILDING WALLS WITH LITTLE ARCHITECTURAL DETAIL TO 
BREAK UP THE WALLS FOR MULTI-STORY STRUCTURES IN ALL ZONING DISTRICTS; 
PROVIDING THAT EACH AND EVERY OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF 
CHAPTER 78 SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND 
AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 
 
 

9) PUBLIC COMMENTS (please state your name for the record) 
 
 

10) ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to appeal any decision made by the Town Commission with 
respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, such interested person will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose 

may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 

appeal is based.  The meeting/hearing will be continued from day to day, time to time, place to place, as may be found necessary during the 

aforesaid meeting.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THIS 

DOCUMENT CAN BE MADE AVAILABLE IN AN ALTERNATE FORMAT (LARGE PRINT) UPON REQUEST AND SPECIAL 

ACCOMODATIONS CAN BE PROVIDED UPON REQUEST WITH THREE (3) DAYS ADVANCE NOTICE.  FOR HEARING 
ASSISTANCE:  If any person wishes to use a hearing device, please contact the Town Clerk.  

 



 

1 
 

   
 
 

Mayor Alan Fiers 
Vice Mayor Scott McCranels 

Commissioner Tracy Larcher                                               Keith Davis, Town Attorney     
Commissioner Janet Kortenhaus                      Town Administrator Wendy Wells      
Commissioner Brian Tyler                                                   Town Clerk Jude M. Goudreau    

 
Minutes 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call: Mayor Fiers called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.   
 
Town Clerk Jude Goudreau called the roll, and those present were Mayor Alan Fiers, Vice 
Mayor Scott McCranels, Commissioner Janet Kortenhaus (via Webex), Commissioner Tracy 
Larcher, and Commissioner Brian Tyler.  
Also, in attendance were:  PBSO Sgt. Steve Langevin, Fire Chief Trevor Steedman, and Town 
Attorney Keith Davis.   

 
APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA 

Town Administrator Wendy Wells asked to add an item under the Financial Report, review, and 
vote on supplemental pay for Director Welch.  
Motion: Vice Mayor Scott McCranels made a motion to approve the Meeting agenda as 
amended.  
Second:  Commissioner Brian Tyler seconded the Motion. 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously.  
 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Commission Meeting Minutes, March 28, 2022 
Reorganization Meeting Minutes, March 28, 2022  

 Emergency Services Agreement for Dispatch Services between Palm Beach County and the   
Town of Palm Beach Shores. 
Automatic increase to impact fees on October 1, 2022.  
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Scott McCranels made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  
Second: Commissioner Tracy Larcher seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously.  
  

VARIANCES:  

 
VAR22-01, Weston Gracida, Owner of 125 Cascade Lane, requests a Variance from Pf. 4.6 to 
allow for a finished floor elevation for the addition of 9.8 feet, where Town Code requires 10.26 
feet. 
 
Attorney Keith Davis swore in Mr. Gracida and asked if there was any ex parte communication; 
Vice Mayor McCranels said yes, he had spoken to Mr. Gracida.  

Monday, April 25, 2022, 7:00 pm. 

Regular Commission Meeting.  
     Town Hall Commission Chambers 

247 Edwards Lane 

         Palm Beach Shores, FL  33404 



 

2 
 

Mayor Fiers briefly explained why the Variance was requested and said that the Town is 
changing the Ordinances in the non-flood area to allow for the finished floor elevations on new 
additions to match the existing home's elevations.   

 

       Motion: Commissioner Tracy Larcher made a motion to approve the Variance.  
       Second: Commissioner Brian Tyler seconded the Motion.  
       Vote: the Motion passed unanimously.  

  
DEPARTMENT AND BOARD REPORTS 
 

Financial Reports: Town Administrator Wendy Wells presented the Monthly Financial Report for 
the Month of March. Mrs. Wells provided a recap of the revenues and expenses and details for 
any items reporting over budget, which were primarily from unexpected repairs to the Community 
Center. Mrs. Wells answered the Commissioner’s questions. Commissioner Larcher questioned 
whether the Town needed Flood Insurance for specific areas of Town.  
 
Motion: Commissioner Tyler made a motion to approve the Financial Report.  
Second: Vice Mayor McCranels seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mid-Year Projections: Mrs. Wells provided a detailed explanation of the midyear expenditures 
and revenues. The Building Department Revenues are higher than expected because of a large 
building project on Inlet. Mrs. Wells answered Commission’s questions.  
 
Explanation of Budget Amendment #2:  
Town Administrator Wendy Wells presented a spreadsheet and detailed account of the budget 
amendments. The amendments are due to the new Capitalization Policies, projects under five 
thousand dollars have been moved from Capitalization to expenditures., the fire truck purchase 
and sale of the current fire truck, additional activity in the building department, use of contingency 
for higher-than-expected costs, and repairs at the community center and, risk management for 
higher insurance costs. Fire Chief Steedman gave an update on the auction and sale of the 
current fire engine. There are two or three potential buyers; one of them is a private buyer who 
may be interested in purchasing both fire trucks.  
 
Vote- Use of Fire Impact fees of $22,047.16 Town Administrator Wendy Wells said that the 
Fire Impact Fees collected will be used for the new fire engine equipment.   
 
Motion: Vice Mayor McCranels made a motion to approve the use of the Fire Impact Fees for 
equipment for the new fire truck.  
Second: Commissioner Tracy Larcher 
Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Update on American Rescue Plan Act:  
The Town has received $316,000.00 so far and is expected to receive another $316,000.00 this 
summer. The first report is due by the end of this month; Town Administrator Wells has it 
prepared and ready to submit. The money can now be used to replace revenues, which lifts the 
restrictions; however, after speaking to our financial auditor, he suggested using the money for 
the contracted police services. The money budgeted for police services will be used for road 
projects.  
 



 

3 
 

Motion: Vice Mayor Scott McCranels made a motion to use the ARPA money in the amount of 
$632,039.00 for the contracted police services and move the savings to the road projects.  
Second: Brian Tyler seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Supplemental Pay Director Alan Welch.  
Commission has previously approved supplement pay through April to Director Alan Welch for 
the underground project. Currently, the supplemental pay is $1,000.00 per month. Mayor Fiers 
reports that the project is done in the north end of Town for AT&T. In the south end of town some 
fiber has been run, but the project has stalled due to the shortage of fiber. As of last Friday, 
AT&T is unsure when the project will be completed. Mayor Fiers would like to continue to pay 
Director Welch for an additional two months. Mrs. Wells and Mayor Fiers both stated that 
Director Welch has been a very intracell part of this project and fully involved with all aspects of 
the project.  
 
Discussion:  Commissioner Tyler asked how much longer the project would take and would they 
continue to pay if they were stalled for another three months. He also asked if they were tracking 
the hours spent by Director Welch on the project. Mayor Fiers said that he spent well above four 
hours a day on this task up until last week. Commissioner Larcher asked what the level of activity 
was, considering they're waiting for the fiber. There were no public comments. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor McCranels made a motion to approve two additional months of pay at 
$1,000.00 a month 
Second: Commissioner Janet Kortenhaus 
Motion:  Commissioner Brian Tyler made a motion to modify the Motion and pay for four 
additional months at $500.00 a month. The Original Maker of the Motion agreed to the Motion to 
modify.  
Second:  Commissioner Kortenhaus seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion passed unanimously  
 
 
 

a) Staff Reports: 

o Sheriff's Department: Sgt. Langevin gave a recap of his written report and provided crime 
statistics for the month and brief descriptions of the crimes. Sgt. Langevin thanked Sailfish 
Marina for their help with a recent boating incident with a fatality; they allowed PBSO to use 
their second-floor facilities while numerous agencies and PBSO K-9 units responded.  
Sgt. Langevin introduced Deputy Brandi Clayton, who provided details about a new program 
that is in the works. The program will be a database of dogs in the community. The program is 
geared to help lost dogs get home quickly and hopefully intercept prior to the lost animal being 
turned over to Animal Care and Control. The database will store pictures of the animals and 
information about the animals to reunite them with their families. Deputy Clayton said they 
would bring a PowerPoint presentation back to Commission once the program is complete.   
 

o Fire Department: Chief provided details of his written report and reviewed the monthly 
statistics. Chief Steedman said his department, along with Code Enforcement Officer Orlando 
Rodriguez, recently completed a floodplain exercise together through Palm Beach County; the 
activity will help with the Community Rating System.  
 
Public Works: Mayor Fiers gave a brief update in place of Director Welch in his absence. The 
Public Works crew has painted the 1st coat of slip-resistant paint at the Community Center, and 



 

4 
 

they are waiting for the additional paint to be delivered to complete the project. The painting 
project at Townhall is completed now. They have started the drainage swales on Edwards, the 
north side is complete, and they will finish the south side, and then there will be one installed on 
Tacoma, hopefully before the rainy season. Extermination of Iguanas will start tomorrow at 
noon. Mayor Fiers said they have already taken 200 eggs from the construction project on Inlet 
Way.  

 
o Town Clerk:  No Report.  

 
o Planning and Zoning Chairman: Jerald Cohn, Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Board, 

said the Board is discussing additional landscaping requirements for multi-story new 
construction to soften the long solid walls to create more privacy. A draft Ordinance is being 
reviewed, and after the Board discusses it, they will make their recommendations to 
Commission on a code modification.   
 

o Town Attorney: Attorney Davis informed Commission that the next League of Cities meeting in 
the City of Greenacres is Wednesday, April 27, 2022; the discussion will be Hurricane 
Preparedness, and following the meeting, there will be an annual workshop for the elected 
officials; this is not ethics training, however. On May 25, 2022, an installation banquet at the 
Kravis Center will take place; all are welcome to attend but must RSVP to the League.  
 

COMMISSION REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor's Updates: 
o Underground Project- See Director Welch's Report.  
o Watermain Project is suspended and waiting for materials.  

 
OTHER BUSINESS  
 
o Vote to extend Brightview’s Landscape contract.  

 
Motion: Commissioner Brian Tyler made a motion to approve the contract. 
Second: Commissioner Tracy Larcher seconded the Motion. 
Vote: Motion Passed Unanimously. 
 

o Vote: Tree trimming services.   
Wendy Wells provided an overview of the data distributed to the Commission. Three written 
quotes were obtained; Brightview Landscaping, who already is our landscaping company, was 
the lowest bid and is already familiar with the Town.   
Commission had a brief discussion, and Mrs. Wells answered their questions. 

 
Motion: Vice Mayor McCranels made a motion to approve the contract with Brightview 
landscaping for the five-year contract.  
Second: Commissioner Tyler seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion Passed Unanimously. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

RESOLUTIONS:  
Resolution: R-6-22: (Scrivener’s error on agenda, R-5-22) 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH 
SHORES, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING ITS OPERATING BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF BUDGET RESOLUTION NO. R-11-21; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
Mayor Fiers stated that this was previously discussed during Mrs. Wells' presentation of 
the budget amendments; this memorializes the amendments.  

 
 

Motion: Commissioner Tyler made a motion to approve the Resolution.  
Second: Vice Mayor McCranels seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 
 
 
ORDINANCES:   
 ORDINANCE NO. O-2-22 First Reading:  

     AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH 
SHORES, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 14. BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 
REGULATIONS. ARTICLE III BUILDING STANDARDS. SEC. 14-108 LOCAL 
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 1 ADMINISTRATION OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING 
CODE ADOPTED. SECTION 109 FEES. BY REQUIRING ADJUSTMENTS TO PERMIT 
FEES PAID PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CO OR EQUIVALENT IN ORDER TO 
ENSURE PAYMENT OF CORRECT FEES; PROVIDING THAT EACH AND EVERY 
OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF CHAPTER 14 SHALL REMAIN IN FULL 
FORCE AND EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS 
CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 Discussion: Mayor Fiers explained that this Ordinance would enable the Town to collect 

a more accurate fee for building permits. Currently, when a project comes before the 
Building Department, the contractor gives an estimate of costs; this Ordinance will now 
require them to provide a cost affidavit at the end of the project, with actual costs for the 
project, usually resulting in an additional building permit fee.  

 
 Motion: Commissioner Janet Kortenhaus made a motion to approve the Ordinance.  

Second: Commissioner Brian Tyler seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion Passed Unanimously.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. O-3-22 First Reading:  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX A. ZONING AT SECTION IV. BASIC RESTRICTIONS FOR 
ALL DISTRICTS. AT PF.4.6. GRADE ELEVATIONS. TO ALLOW ADDITIONS TO SINGLE-
FAMILY STRUCTURES IN ZONING DISTRICT A TO MATCH THE EXISTING GRADE AND 
FINISHED FIRST FLOOR ELEVATIONS SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS AND AT 
SECTION XIII. NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS AND USES. AT PF. 13.2. 
NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS. TO ADD AN ALLOWANCE FOR ADDITIONS TO SINGLE-
FAMILY HOUSES IN ZONING DISTRICT A TO BE BUILT TO MATCH THE NONCONFORMING 



 

6 
 

GRADE AND FINISHED FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION; PROVIDING THAT EACH AND EVERY 
OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF APPENDIX A SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
Discussion: None.  
This Ordinance responds to the numerous requests for Variance on this subject.  
Motion: Commissioner Kortenhaus made a motion to approve the Ordinance.   
Second: Vice Mayor McCranels seconded the Motion.  
Vote: Motion Passed Unanimously.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: Rick Kollmeyer commented on the encroachments subject. Mr. Kollmeyer 
has researched the property (s) in question and has concerns that the buildings are significantly 
encroaching on the Town's property that the Town should use. Mr. Kollmeyer read a letter that he 
prepared and gave to Mayor Fiers (attached to these minutes). Mr. Kollmeyer requested that the 
Town make a greater effort to get the information out to the residents. Mayor Fiers said this issue 
had been the topic of discussion numerous times at workshops and meetings for several months, 
previously in 2010 and since 1956.   
 
Mayor Fiers welcomes Donna Ward as the new Chair of the Environmental Committee.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

  Motion: Commissioner Tyler made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
      Second: Vice Mayor McCranels seconded the Motion. 

        Vote: Motion passed unanimously. 
 
       The meeting was adjourned at 8:33 pm.    
 

 
Approved this 23 day of May 2022.  ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________   ______________________________ 
Alan Fiers, Mayor      Jude M. Goudreau, Town Clerk 

(Seal) 



 
 
 
 
 
 

10142 Parkside Drive • Suite 500 • Knoxville, TN 37922 • office 865.688.8342 • fax 865.688.8369 
pandj.com 

 

 
Town of Palm Beach Shores 
247 Edwards Lane 
Palm Beach Shores, FL 33404 
 
 
RE:  Mutual Aid Agreement for Hurricane/Disaster Debris Removal, Reduction and Disposal between 

Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County, and Phillips and Jordan, Inc.  
 
Phillips and Jordan, Inc. (P&J) and the Solid Waste Authority of Palm Beach County have executed an 
Agreement for Hurricane/Disaster Debris Removal, Reduction and Disposal, Agreement No. 22-201C 
effective May 8, 2022, through May 7, 2025. 
 
Article 33 (Agreements with other Government Entities) of Agreement No. 22-201C states:  
 

The CONTRACTOR agrees that this Agreement constitutes an offer to all State Agencies and local 
government agencies of the State of Florida under the same terms and conditions, for the same 
prices and for the same effective period as specified in this Agreement; should the 
CONTRACTOR deem it in the best interest of their business to do so. 
 
The Agreement in no way restricts or interferes with any State Agency or local government 
agencies of the State of Florida from re-solicitation. 

 
I would like to offer to the Town of Palm Beach Shores, FL, to enter into this agreement with Phillips & 
Jordan, Inc. per Article 33 of Agreement No. 22-201C. This offer is made at the same terms and 
conditions stated in the referenced agreement.   
 
Please return one fully executed original letter upon acceptance. 
 
PHILLIPS & JORDAN, INC.     ACCEPTED: TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES 
 
Name: ________________________                                  Name: ______________________________ 
 
Printed Name:  Morgan Pierce                                              Printed Name: ________________________ 
 
Title: President, Power                                             Title: ________________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________                                      Date: ________________________________ 





























































































































DATE SUBMITTED 	 PERMIT NO. 	 

Town of Palm Beach Shores 

APPLICATION FOR 
SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT 

(Section 18-27 of Town Code) 

Type of event:  lshi rt.) TOtArin owv-c4 -  Location:  Sa\-g-Sk NACtiflaket-30,4-  

Sponsor:  bi 0(..) .s 	Telephone:  601- SC1 2- WL-049  

Property owner's consent and acknowledgement f r sponsibility: 
4  

Date and Time  LOC 02 3 - S 	Time it ends:  t0`.,00p.v,  

Number of participants: 	300  

Proof of insurance attached? 
	

Yes ✓ 	No 	g  

Copy of all required state and county permits if event will be held on or 
utilize state and/or county-controlled property. 

Please indicate any traffic, fire-rescue, utilities impact, and/or mitigation 
plan: 

Permit fee $50  X)  (Untimely application $150 	) Receipt # 	 

APPROVED: 

Fire Department: 	Police Department: 	 

Number of off-duty officers required: 	  

Date of Commission Review: 5.* 	Approved: 	  

Form No. 63 (revised 8/05) &Wry Documents\Forms \Form 63 Special event permit.doc 
Page 1 of 2 

• 
Signature: 	  

4-4  



CASH &

INVESTMENTS BUDGET CURRENT YEAR TO DATE % OF BUDGET

9/30/2021 3,813,877$         5,568,602$         504,222$             6,011,990$     108%

10/31/2021 3,118,733$          5,462,261$          40,281$                40,281$            1%

11/30/2021 3,592,251$          5,609,398$          835,222$              875,503$          16%

12/31/2021 6,033,755$          5,609,398$          2,845,301$          3,720,804$      66%

1/31/2022 5,911,353$          5,609,398$          252,557$              3,973,360$      71%

2/28/2022 5,884,797$          5,609,398$          288,402$              4,261,762$      76%

3/31/2022 5,820,230$          5,609,398$          377,307$              4,639,070$      83%

4/30/2022 5,299,293$          6,128,237$          318,131$             4,957,200$      81%

4/30/2021 4,247,522$         5,517,240$         336,516$             4,710,726$     85%

5/31/2022

6/30/2022

7/31/2022

8/31/2022

9/30/2022

BUDGET DISBURSEMENTS ACCRUALS CURRENT EXP YEAR TO DATE % OF BUDGET

9/30/2021 5,568,602$         215,098$             150,667$             365,766$             5,288,460$     95%

10/31/2021 5,462,261$          808,352$              (164,056)$            644,296$              644,296$          12%

11/30/2021 5,609,398$          368,546$              (42,378)$              326,168$              970,464$          17%

12/31/2021 5,609,398$          380,179$              47,452$                427,631$              1,398,095$      25%

1/31/2022 5,609,398$          377,709$              17,590$                395,298$              1,793,394$      32%

2/28/2022 5,609,398$          536,195$              (192,897)$            343,298$              2,136,692$      38%

3/31/2022 5,609,398$          319,981$              234,325$              554,306$              2,690,998$      48%

4/30/2022 6,128,237$          536,195$              99,928$                636,123$             3,327,121$      54%

4/30/2021 5,517,240$         594,596$             8,198$                 602,794$             3,338,697$     61%

5/31/2022

6/30/2022

7/31/2022

8/31/2022

9/30/2022

Budget Amendment #1 was approved at the October 2021 Commission meeting.

Budget Amendment #2 was approved at the March 2022 Commission meeting.

TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

R E V E N U E

E X P E N D I T U R E S



Apr Benchmark 58.3%

BUDGET YTD Favorable(Unfav) %

REVENUE

Revenue (without appr'd F/B) 5,803,200.00$      4,957,200.23$     (845,999.77)$         85.4%

Appropriated Fund Balance 218,721.00            ‐                        (218,721.00)           0.0%

Capital Lease Proceeds 106,316.00            ‐                        (106,316.00)           0.0%

TOTAL REVENUE 6,128,237.00$      4,957,200.23$    (1,171,036.77)$     80.9%

EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT % of total % of total

Administration 484,562.00$         8% 255,753.50$        8% 228,808.50$          52.8%

Legal 121,000.00            2% 53,267.40            2% 67,732.60               44.0%

Public Works 358,162.00            6% 221,439.42          7% 136,722.58            61.8%

Police 1,680,027.00        27% 1,114,142.95       33% 565,884.05            66.3%

Fire 709,718.00            12% 361,680.34          11% 348,037.66            51.0%

Building 279,962.00            5% 153,228.21          5% 126,733.79            54.7%

Emergency Disaster ‐                          0% ‐                        0% ‐                           0.0%

Solid Waste 209,250.00            3% 113,612.94          3% 95,637.06               54.3%

Legislative 18,562.00              0% 7,693.11               0% 10,868.89               41.4%

Streets/Storm Sewers 29,025.00              0% 14,519.87            0% 14,505.13               50.0%

Parks 217,024.00            4% 84,541.12            3% 132,482.88            39.0%

Beach 114,193.00            2% 50,163.82            2% 64,029.18               43.9%

Lift Stations/Sewer Service 42,975.00              1% 5,384.86               0% 37,590.14               12.5%

Contingencies 42,675.00              1% ‐                        0% 42,675.00               0.0%

Debt Service 495,855.00            8% 495,854.58          15% 0.42                         100.0%

Emergency Medical Services 351,851.00            6% 204,171.05          6% 147,679.95            58.0%

Community Center 69,075.00              1% 56,524.56            2% 12,550.44               81.8%

Risk Management 110,231.00            2% 90,802.86            3% 19,428.14               82.4%

Capital 794,090.00            13% 44,234.61            1% 749,855.39            5.6%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,128,237.00$      3,327,015.20$    2,801,221.80$       54.3%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ‐                          1,630,185.03       1,630,185.03        

Explanation of Variances:

Public Works ‐ this is timing.  This period includes purchase of material to coat Town Hall float roof; chainsaw 

parts in anticipation of hurricane season; and air rifle for iguana extermination.

Police ‐ this is timing, PBSO is paid monthly in advance.

Debt Service ‐ both payments made 10/1/21 and 4/1/22.

Community Center ‐ new electrical service for the new fans, more a/c repairs, BBQ parts 

Risk Management ‐ We have paid 3 of 4 quarterly installments on the main policy.  The other policies are paid.

Town of Palm Beach Shores
Budget Summary Report

April 2022



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Disbursements ‐ April 2022

Check # Type Date Vendor Name Amount

         3616 C 4/7/2022 114 Albatross Supply 1,086.19$             

         3617 C 4/7/2022 556 Armchem International 950.70$                

         3618 C 4/7/2022 823 AT&T Mobility 34.99$                  

         3619 C 4/7/2022 823 AT&T Mobility 34.99$                  

         3620 C 4/7/2022 52 Comcast 42.45$                  

         3621 C 4/7/2022 107 Davis & Associates, P.A. 12,870.00$          

         3622 C 4/7/2022 708 Dilo Fire Alarms Inc 294.51$                

         3623 C 4/7/2022 863 Diversified Building Department Management 8,785.00$             

         3624 C 4/7/2022 746 Essential Net Solutions 1,434.99$             

         3625 C 4/7/2022 89 Home Depot Credit Svcs 299.00$                

         3626 C 4/7/2022 90 Hulett Environmental Services 164.00$                

         3627 C 4/7/2022 90 Hulett Environmental Services 113.00$                

         3628 C 4/7/2022 659 Image Janitorial Services, Inc. 2,050.00$             

         3629 C 4/7/2022 941 Jude M. Goudreau 43.92$                  

         3630 C 4/7/2022 679 Keehn Emergency Medical Services, Inc 1,500.00$             

         3631 C 4/7/2022 457 Lightning Electric 2,050.00$             

         3632 C 4/7/2022 419 Optivor Technologies 572.89$                

         3633 C 4/7/2022 476 Performance Napa LLC 253.83$                

         3634 C 4/7/2022 365 Sherwin‐Williams 489.69$                

         3635 C 4/7/2022 484 Shred‐It, c/o Stericycle, Inc. 111.25$                

         3636 C 4/7/2022 100 Toshiba Business Solutions 199.85$                

         3637 C 4/7/2022 101 Verizon Wireless 61.00$                  

         3638 C 4/7/2022 104 Waste Management 11,825.64$          

         3639 C 4/7/2022 269 Wright National Flood Insurance Co. 10,206.00$          

         3640 C 4/14/2022 861 BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. 7,277.08$             

         3641 C 4/14/2022 491 Dilo Fire Sprinkler, Inc. 385.00$                

         3642 C 4/14/2022 80 FL Public Utilities 154.65$                

         3643 C 4/14/2022 116 GateHouse West Palm Beach ‐ Adv 357.76$                

         3644 C 4/14/2022 90 Hulett Environmental Services 164.00$                

         3645 C 4/14/2022 659 Image Janitorial Services, Inc. 4,100.00$             

         3646 C 4/14/2022 679 Keehn Emergency Medical Services, Inc 1,500.00$             

         3647 C 4/14/2022 917 Lancier Castro 20.19$                  

         3648 C 4/14/2022 405 Nelson Lopez 853.20$                

         3649 C 4/14/2022 806 Minuteman Press of North Palm Beach 190.00$                

         3650 C 4/14/2022 14 Nowlen, Holt & Miner, P.A. 9,845.00$             

         3651 C 4/14/2022 858 Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office 137,364.83$        

         3652 C 4/14/2022 974 Phil Ripley 2,650.00$             

         3653 C 4/14/2022 204 Pinch‐a‐Penny Pool 554.37$                

         3654 C 4/14/2022 30 Poly Systems Company 2,750.00$             

         3655 C 4/14/2022 896 Primestar Digital Network 250.00$                

         3656 C 4/14/2022 625 Revize LLC 1,900.00$             

         3657 C 4/14/2022 365 Sherwin‐Williams 4,623.89$             

         3658 C 4/14/2022 100 Toshiba Business Solutions 367.39$                

         3659 C 4/14/2022 964 Tritech Software Systems 150.00$                

         3660 C 4/14/2022 131 WEX BANK 87.02$                  

         3661 C 4/14/2022 131 WEX BANK 588.43$                

         3662 C 4/14/2022 110 Xpert elevator Services, Inc. 417.72$                

         3663 C 4/22/2022 324 AC Enforcement, Inc. 3,533.88$             

Page 1 of 2



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Disbursements ‐ April 2022

Check # Type Date Vendor Name Amount

         3664 C 4/22/2022 859 Carpenter Electric, Inc. 4,354.00$             

         3665 C 4/22/2022 32 City of Riviera Beach 2,774.97$             

         3666 C 4/22/2022 928 End of the Line, Inc. 106.25$                

         3667 C 4/22/2022 240 Everglades Equipment Group 3,401.13$             

         3668 C 4/22/2022 606 Florida Municipal Insurance Trust 670.66$                

         3669 C 4/22/2022 71 FL Power & Light 2,825.10$             

         3670 C 4/22/2022 935 Jonathan Figueroa 168.00$                

         3671 C 4/22/2022 95 Lowes 125.02$                

         3672 C 4/22/2022 879 Orlando Rodriguez 300.00$                

         3673 C 4/22/2022 476 Performance Napa LLC 377.16$                

         3674 C 4/22/2022 911 AT&T 319.10$                

         3675 C 4/22/2022 516 Schmidt Nichols 3,277.50$             

         3676 C 4/22/2022 494 Signs by Tomorrow 450.00$                

         3677 C 4/22/2022 375 Simmons & White, Inc. 4,887.61$             

         3678 C 4/28/2022 29 Alphagraphics of the Palm Beaches 187.79$                

         3679 C 4/28/2022 32 City of Riviera Beach 177,215.88$        

         3680 C 4/28/2022 130 Manno's Public Safety Supply 691.91$                

         3681 C 4/28/2022 911 AT&T 864.03$                

         3682 C 4/28/2022 881 South Central Planning & Development Commission 260.42$                

         3683 C 4/28/2022 592 Trevor Steedman 162.92$                

         3684 C 4/28/2022 978 Truist Bank 4,187.37$             

         3686 C 4/28/2022 104 Waste Management 3,074.81$             

ADP, LLC E 4/22/2022 697 ADP, LLC 224.60$                

ADP Taxes E 4/8/2022 ADP Taxes 7,935.60$             

ADP Taxes E 4/22/2022 ADP Taxes 7,962.28$             

ADP Wages E 4/8/2022 ADP Wages 24,923.74$          

ADP Wages E 4/22/2022 ADP Wages 24,942.67$          

Blue Cross Blue Shield  E 4/28/2022 127 Blue Cross Blue Shield of Florida, Inc. 13,297.17$          

FRS E 4/6/2022 172 FRS 11,669.07$          

537,195.06$        

General Fund  536,195.06$     

Underground Utilities Fund 1,000.00$          

Total 537,195.06$     

Page 2 of 2



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Utility Tax

10% Effective 4/1/17

Electric Water Gas Total

FPL Riviera Beach FPU

Oct‐21 21,602.65        7,545.45          1,517.83          30,665.93       

Nov‐21 19,389.47        6,183.52          1,790.78          27,363.77       

Dec‐21 14,518.67        5,127.67          1,565.34          21,211.68       

Jan‐22 20,655.93        8,910.37          1,851.53          31,417.83       

Feb‐22 15,889.94        6,396.56          5,940.52          28,227.02       

Mar‐22 17,455.66        17,455.66       

Apr‐22 ‐                   

May‐22 ‐                   

Jun‐22 ‐                   

Jul‐22 ‐                   

Aug‐22 ‐                   

Sep‐22 ‐                   

YTD Total 109,512.32      34,163.57        12,666.00        156,341.89     



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Discretionary Sales Tax PBC

Accumulated (unspent) Discretionary Sales Tax as of 9/30/17 49,955.01$    

Accumulated (unspent) Discretionary Sales Tax as of 9/30/18 119,434.60$  

Accumulated (unspent) Discretionary Sales Tax as of 9/30/19 207,613.87$  

Accumulated (unspent) Discretionary Sales Tax as of 9/30/20 291,486.47$  

Accumulated (unspent) Discretionary Sales Tax as of 9/30/21 387,432.10$  

Current Year Receipts:

Date of Receipt  Period

11/29/2021 October 2021 7,419.45$      

12/27/2021 November 2021 7,715.47$      

1/27/2022 December 2021 8,353.45$      

2/18/2022 2021 Q4 adjustment 4,579.19$      

2/28/2022 January 2022 10,259.20$    

3/28/2022 February 2022 8,235.02$      

4/27/2022 March 2022 8,675.62$      

Total current year receipts 55,237.40$    

Current Year Expenditures:

‐$                

Accumulated (unspent) Discretionary Sales Tax as of 4/30/22 442,669.50$  



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Building Department

Building Building  Net Cumulative

Permits Department Building Net Bldg

10/31/2021 10,845$       20,820$       (9,975)$        (9,975)$       

11/30/2021 20,757$       9,456$         11,300$       1,326$        

12/31/2021 41,051$       24,855$       16,196$       17,521$      

1/31/2022 17,800$       22,185$       (4,385)$        13,136$      

2/28/2022 12,963$       17,686$       (4,723)$        8,413$        

3/31/2022 162,041$     33,602$       128,438$     136,852$    

4/30/2022 19,972$       24,624$       (4,651)$        132,200$    

5/31/2022 ‐$             132,200$    

6/30/2022 ‐$             132,200$    

7/31/2022 ‐$             132,200$    

8/31/2022 ‐$             132,200$    

9/30/2022 ‐$             132,200$    

285,429$     153,228$     132,200$    

Other related revenues:

Bldg Permit State Surcharge 9,781$        

Fire Inspection Fees ‐$            

Reinspection Fees ‐$            

Code Enf Admin Cost Reimb ‐$            

Site Plan / Variance Fees 3,150$        

Land Development Costs 38,612$      

Town Code & Ordinance Fines ‐$            

Net Building 183,743$    

In March, the permit fees were collected for 150, 200, and 206 Inlet.



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Underground Utilities

as of 4/30/22

COST  TOTAL Remaining 

ESTIMATE as of 4/30/22 Costs Cost Variance

Other Financing Sources:

Loan Proceeds 6,000,000$   6,000,000.00$     ‐$                   6,000,000.00$   ‐$                  

Expenditures:

Survey 38,000$        65,762.50$           ‐$                   65,762.50$         (27,762.50)$    

Legal 4,000$           3,150.00$             ‐$                   3,150.00$           850.00$           

Project Mgmt/Admin 80,000$        93,322.09$           (3,322.09)$        90,000.00$         (10,000.00)$    

Construction ‐ Viking 4,336,460$   4,339,910.00$     (3,450.00)$        4,336,460.00$   ‐$                  

Construction ‐ Comcast 250,000$      528,340.73$        ‐$                   528,340.73$      (278,340.73)$  

Construction ‐ AT&T 450,000$      275,000.00$        450,000.00$    725,000.00$      (275,000.00)$  

Construction ‐ FPL 254,386$      254,386.00$        ‐$                   254,386.00$      ‐$                  

Landscape Restoration 16,300$        9,584.51$             6,715.49$         16,300.00$         ‐$                  

Loan Acquisition 23,000$        22,508.00$           ‐$                   22,508.00$         492.00$           

Contingency 547,854$      ‐$                       ‐$                   ‐$                     547,854.00$   

Total expenditures 6,000,000$  5,591,963.83$     449,943.40$    6,041,907.23$   (41,907.23)$    

Net Change in Fund Balance ‐$               408,036.17$        (449,943.40)$   (41,907.23)$       (41,907.23)$    

Viking is complete and paid in full.  Additional costs of $3,450 were for repairs to sewer lines damaged

when conduit was installed.

AT&T Phase 1 is complete and paid in full.  

We expect to have similar remedial drilling on Phase 2 for AT&T (similar to Comcast) which are included.

P R O J E C T E D



Town of Palm Beach Shores

Dredging Project

as of 4/30/2022

Cash ‐$                   

Revenue:

Donations 15,000$            

Expenditures:

Professional Services 15,000$            

Revenue over expenditures ‐$                   



 
3228 Gun Club Road        West Palm Beach, Florida 33406-3001        (561) 688-3000        http://www.pbso.org 

 
                                                        

 
 

May 2022 Commission report with stats from April 2022 
 

Arrests/Detentions 
 
One arrest occurred at the Marriott resort for Domestic battery. 
 
Deputies responded to two different locations in town regarding mental health 
assistance.  Both persons were detained under the Baker act and brought to the 
appropriate facility for care. 

Miscellaneous 
Deputies are finishing up the agencies transition to the new 9MM firearms, fitted 
with laser sighting and flashlights.  This is a 2-day class and includes night time 
instruction. 
 
We are close to having all our deputies trained in Crisis intervention techniques, this 
is a week-long class. 
 
I attended the first quarterly citizen advisory board along with the Palm Beach Shores 
representative to the board, Mrs. Elizabeth Keykenmystir.  It was a good round table 
discussion including other civilian members along with the commanders of all 
districts in the North region bureau.  It is led by Colonel Araujo. 
 
I believe all enjoyed the annual Mayors Youth council Easter egg hunt, it was very 
well attended and received 800.00 Dollars in donations at the BBQ portion of the 
event.  All five PBSO therapy dogs were on hand to interact with all. 
 
As mentioned last month, the PBSO members we had on hand for the event along 
with all the Therapy dogs responded to the Sailfish marina to assist with the tragic 
boating crash. 
 
The annual State attorneys walk showcasing Victims’ rights week also went 
smoothly. The Mayor, State Attorney David Aronberg were in attendance along with 
victims of crimes and members of the State Attorneys staff.  Our deputies were 
augmented by District 3 crime prevention team to provide security for all involved. 
 
Attached are the statistics for the month of April 2022 
 

Sergeant Steven Langevin 
Commander District 20/Town of Palm Beach Shores 



 

 Page 1 
 

April - 2022 - Monthly Strategic Report 
 

CAD Calls Monthly Totals 

Business / Residence Checks (Self-Initiated) 3249 

Traffic Stops (Self-Initiated) 35 

Calls for Service (Excluding 1050’s & 1061’s) 238 

All CAD Calls - Total 3522 
Data Source: CADS/Premier 1 

*Omit Miscellaneous Calls 

Note: P1 is a dynamic system. Meaning that #’s can change from what was previously reported in the 

event there is a location or call type re-classification/modification.  

 

Summary: During the month, there were 3522 generated calls within the district.  

93% of these calls were self-initiated.  

 
Data below represents Traffic Activity conducted by D20 Deputies  

Data Source: D20 Office Staff 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total 

Citations

Total 

Warnings

Parking 

Citations
4 32 6



 

 Page 2 
 

Arrest and NTA Statistics  
 

Arrest Data                                                                                      

Arrests & Notice to Appear (NTA) within District 20 

Total Count - 1 
Data Source: CADS/Premier 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATA ANALYSIS
 

The data included in this report is charted and graphed to illustrate and compare changes over a 

specific time period. These charts and graphs are utilized to assist in determining crime trends and 

to measure enforcement efforts. This data is utilized in conjunction with other analysis to develop 

directed patrol and various enforcement activities. The analysis included on these pages is 

presented as a brief highlight to explain the salient points of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RPT # SIGNAL NEIGHBORHOOD COMMONPLACE LOCATION

22059156 31D MARRIOTT OCEAN POINTE MARRIOTT OCEAN POINTE - WELCOME CENTER 71 OCEAN AVE



 

 Page 3 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 00

1

0 0 0
0

1

2

3

Homicide Robbery Sexual Assault Shooting Stabbing

D20 Monthly Stats

Homicide, Robbery, Sexual Assault, Shooting, Stabbing
Data Source: CADS/P1

February

March

April

0 0 0 0 0 00 0 0

2

0

1

0 0 0 0

4

0
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Burglary

Business

Burglary

Construction

Burglary

Residence

Burglary

Vehicle

Theft/Larceny Vandalism

D20 Monthly Stats

Burglaries, Theft & Vandalism
Data Source: CADS/P1

February

March

April



 

 Page 4 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

1

0 00 0
0

1

2

3

Stolen Vehicle Stolen Vehicle Recovery

D20 Monthly Stats

Stolen Vehicles & Stolen Vehicle Recoveries
Data Source: CADS/P1

February

March

April

2

3

1

3

0

1

0

1

2

3

4

Hit and Run Motor Vehicle Crash

D20 Monthly Stats

Hit and Run & Motor Vehicle Crash
Data Source: CADS/P1

February

March

April



 

 Page 5 
 

District 20 Map of Activity 
 Data: Source: CrimeView Dashboard 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 Page 6 
 

FIR MAP  
 

6 Records Plotted in CrimeView Dashboard.     

 
(7) Conducted per the FIR Track system.   

Note: This # could change due to FIR’s being inputted into system after search was 

conducted.                                     



Incident Type Incident Type Description Date Beat Location Source Unit Officer Priority Report

202200367489 31D 31D - Assault   Domestic Related 04/20/2022 20:28:23 20-11 Marriott Ocean Pointe - Welcome Center (71 Ocean Ave), Apt: 5210 Ani/Ali 20B12 28990 1 22059156

1 Record(s)

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 1 of 205/16/2022 12:39 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Total Incidents Listed 1

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 2 of 205/16/2022 12:39 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Incident Type Incident Type Description Date Beat Location Source Unit Officer Priority Report

202200353396 20 20 - Mentally Disturbed Person 04/16/2022 06:21:45 20-11 Sailfish Marina - Restaurant (98 Lake Dr) Phone 20A12 6497 3 22057546

202200303081 20 20 - Mentally Disturbed Person 04/01/2022 14:47:55 20-11 Tahiti On The Inlet (125 Inlet Way), Apt: 9 Ani/Ali 10A99 38872 1 22052341

2 Record(s)

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 1 of 205/16/2022 12:47 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Total Incidents Listed 2

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 2 of 205/16/2022 12:47 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Incident Type Incident Type Description Date Beat Location Source Unit Officer Priority Report

202200381776 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/25/2022 11:57:20 20-11 Lake Dr / Blossom Ln Self Initiate 20A11 36151 2

202200381683 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/25/2022 11:26:38 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200356126 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/17/2022 09:14:34 20-11 Marriott Ocean Pointe - Kingfish (31 Ocean Ave) Self Initiate 20A11 36151 2

202200354349 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/16/2022 15:59:02 20-11 Sailfish Marina - Restaurant (98 Lake Dr) Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200346474 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/14/2022 09:31:06 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200343180 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 11:53:17 20-11 Bravado Ln / Lake Dr Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200343084 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 11:27:30 20-11 Linda Ln / Lake Dr Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200342746 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 10:02:30 20-11 340 Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200342666 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 09:47:12 20-11 Lake Dr / Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200342549 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 09:22:20 20-11 Edwards Ln / Lake Dr Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200342501 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 09:08:27 20-11 Lake Dr / Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200342467 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 08:57:02 20-11 Lake Dr / Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200342406 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 08:41:02 20-11 Ocean Ave / Inlet Way Self Initiate 20A13 28985 2

202200338937 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/12/2022 10:21:54 20-11 Sandal Ln / Lake Dr Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200338315 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/12/2022 07:50:47 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200309073 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/03/2022 14:28:45 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

16 Record(s)

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 1 of 205/16/2022 12:32 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Total Incidents Listed 16

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 2 of 205/16/2022 12:32 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Incident Type Incident Type Description Date Beat Location Source Unit Officer Priority Report

202200384957 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/26/2022 11:17:56 20-11 Lake Dr / Edwards Ln Self Initiate 20A11 36151 2

202200384901 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/26/2022 10:58:41 20-11 300 Blossom Ln Self Initiate 20A11 36151 2

202200381339 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/25/2022 09:43:38 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200377507 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/23/2022 23:08:36 20-11 Lake Dr / Edwards Ln Self Initiate 20B11 36146 2

202200377144 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/23/2022 20:30:57 20-11 Ocean Ave / Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20B12 24636 2

202200369494 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/21/2022 11:15:32 20-11 Lake Dr / Tacoma Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200355684 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/17/2022 02:06:38 20-11 Dist20 (247 Edwards Ln) Phone 20B11 36146 2

202200352803 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/16/2022 00:34:24 20-11 Tacoma Ln / Ocean Ave Self Initiate 20B11 36146 2

202200351984 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/15/2022 19:50:10 20-11 Blossom Ln / Lake Dr Self Initiate 20B11 36146 2

202200351887 99T 99T - Problem Solving   Traffic 04/15/2022 19:20:01 20-11 Approx Loc: 220 Lake Dr Mdt 20B12 24636 4

202200341375 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 00:29:23 20-11 Approx Loc: 142 Lake Dr Mdt 20B12 28990 2

202200338550 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/12/2022 08:50:35 20-11 Edwards Ln / Ocean Ave Self Initiate 20A11 36151 2

202200338315 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/12/2022 07:50:47 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200331102 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/09/2022 23:59:47 20-11 Approx Loc: 102 Tacoma Ln Mdt 20B12 28990 2

202200330949 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/09/2022 22:49:18 20-11 Approx Loc: 202 Sandal Ln Mdt 20B12 28990 2

202200310106 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/03/2022 22:31:34 20-11 Approx Loc: 77 Lake Dr Mdt 20B12 28990 2

202200309073 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/03/2022 14:28:45 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200301664 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/01/2022 07:11:34 20-11 Park Ave / Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20A12 28985 2

18 Record(s)

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 1 of 205/16/2022 12:35 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Total Incidents Listed 18

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 2 of 205/16/2022 12:35 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Incident Type Incident Type Description Date Beat Location Source Unit Officer Priority Report

202200381339 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/25/2022 09:43:38 20-11 Lake Dr / Cascade Ln Self Initiate 20A12 6497 2

202200351234 1061 1061 - Business / Residence Check 04/15/2022 14:31:13 20-11 90 Edwards Ln Mdt 20A11 36151 5

202200342612 1050 1050 - Vehicle Stop 04/13/2022 09:37:11 20-11 340 Bamboo Rd Self Initiate 20A11 8756 2

202200326926 68 68 - Police Service Call 04/08/2022 15:13:25 20-11 Whispering Waters Condo (308 Inlet Way) Self Initiate 20A13 28985 4

4 Record(s)

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 1 of 205/16/2022 12:30 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



Total Incidents Listed 4

PBSO\BOECKLERM Page 2 of 205/16/2022 12:30 PM

Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office
Incident Search      



 

 

1 

 

   

                Public Works Department 

     Monthly Status Report 

                May 2022  

 

Community Center: 

        

1. Receiving quotes to replace the 2nd floor east balcony awning.  

2. Scheduling to paint the first-floor deck to complete the exterior painting of the building. This task is 

challenging due to event scheduling of the facility. This project will be performed by Public Works 

Staff. The Paint Project start date was Wednesday, April 20, 2022, the first coat of paint was applied. 

The project was completed on Thursday, April 28, 2022. This project had a cost savings of $8,000.00.   

3. Scheduling Restaurant and Kitchen Planners to discuss 2nd floor kitchen remodel.  

4. The projects listed is funded through the approved general and capital budget. 

  

Grounds & Parks: 

 

1. Scheduling to order new Park Benches for Inlet Park and the Parkway. The manufacturers are starting 

to produce more products for shipping due to new COVID guidelines in place. 

2. Scheduling to install concrete slabs under the Parkway benches due to safety concerns. The concrete 

slabs will replace the existing individual square pavers creating an uneven surface and trip hazards. 

There is a total of 37 concrete slabs to be installed. This project will be performed by the Public 

Works Staff. 

3. Receiving quotes to replace the damaged concrete trash cans located on the Parkway, Inlet Park, and 

Beach.  

4. Scheduling to pressure wash the Parkway sidewalk, bricks, and park benches. 

5. Scheduling to convert all the Irrigation mechanical time clock controllers and zone valves to digital 

located along the Parkway. There is a total of 5 stations to be converted. This will improve water 

consumption and maintenance costs. The work will be completed by the Public Works Department 

staff.   

6. The new Tree Trimming contractor BrightView trimmed trees on the Parkway Tuesday, May 17, 

2022. The estimated time of completion including the Beach Palm Trees is two weeks. The first 

cutting of the Coconut Palm Trees is scheduled to be trimmed in late July, or the beginning of August 

2022.        

7. The projects listed is funded through the approved general and capital budget. 

 



 

 

2 

 

Streets: 
 

1. The streetlight restoration project began July 8, 2021. The restoration includes concrete repairs to the 

light poles and painting of the poles with a color of Hunter Green. There are a total of 196 streetlight 

poles in Town including the Streets, Parkway, and Town Hall parking lot. The work is performed by 

the Public Works Department. The restoration work will have a cost savings of $ 6,000.00 per pole if 

replaced. Locations of the completed Street Light Poles as follows: The parkway, Town Hall Parking 

Lot, and the Beach Parking Lot. This project is ongoing due to weather and other project delays.      

2. The Public Works Department will continue to apply asphalt patch in various locations on the Town 

Streets as needed. Tacoma Lane in the 200 block and Bamboo Road in the 300 block was applied on 

Monday, April 11, 2022. The total of 30 bags of DOT approved asphalt patch was applied.  

3. The installation of the street storm drains swales on the corner of Edwards Lane and Lake Drive and 

the south side of Blossom Lane and Lake Drive storm drain swale was completed on Wednesday, 

May 4, 2022. 

4. Performed Maintenance and Inspection on Tuesday, May16, 2022 on the Lake Drive and Bamboo 

Road Tidal Valve. The integrity and operation of the Tidal Valve is within factor standards.     

5. The projects listed is funded through the approved general budget.  

 

Lift Stations: 

 
1. Scheduling to receive quotes to replace the 8-inch riser pipes in the wet well of the Lake Drive Lift 

Station #01. Possible piggyback contract available for project. Waiting on contractors’ availability. 
2. Scheduling to reline the streets sewer manholes in various locations. Waiting on contractors’ 

availability. 
3. Scheduling to perform the preventive maintenance cleaning of the Town’s main sewer lines running 

under the streets. Linda Lane is scheduled for June 2022. Waiting on contractors’ availability.       
4. The projects listed is funded through the approved general and capital budget.  

 

Public Works Building, Police Building, Fire Department Annex Building, Beach Building: 

 

1. Scheduling to apply a roof coating on the Town Hall Building, Flat Roof. Public Works will be 

applying the roof coating. This process will prolong the roof integrity 8-10 years.   

2. The Exterior Paint Project of the Town Hall, Police, and Fire Bay, still in progress, The Town hall is 

¾ completed as of March 23, 2022. Estimated completion date weather permitting on Tuesday, April 

5, 2022. The completion date was Wednesday, April 6, 2022. A total of 9 days to complete the project 

of Town Hall. The Police and Fire Bay Building will be scheduled immediately following the 

completion and inspection of the Town Hall. The Police and Fire Bay Building paint project will be 

scheduled when the street swales are completed due to Hurricane season approaching.  

      3.   The projects listed is funded through the approved general and capital budget.   

 

Capital Projects For 2021-2022:  

 

1. Community Center Replace 1st floor fireproof metal doors: Receiving Estimates / Contractor. 

2. Community Center Replace 2nd floor east balcony awning: Receiving Estimates / Contractor. 



 

 

3 

 

3. Paint Exterior of Town Hall, Police, and Fire Bay: Scheduling in progress / Public Works will 

perform the work. Town Hall is completed. 

4. Town Hall new Fire Alarm monitoring system: Receiving Estimates / Contractor.  

5. Inlet Park, Parkway, Beach, and town streets replace concrete trash cans: Receiving Quotes and 

availability / Contractor. 

6. Inlet Park, Beach replace concrete benches: Receiving Quotes and availability / Contractor. 

7. Streets New Storm grates and concrete aprons: In progress / Public Works to perform the work. 

Storm Grates are installed.  

8. Lift station #01 Lake Drive replace wet well riser pipes and pump base plates: Receiving 

Estimates and piggyback contracts availability / Contractor.  

                      

Training / Certificates: 

 

1. Continuing Education in Florida Stormwater Erosion and Sedimentation Control. No cost to the 

Town. 

2. OSHA’S Model Training Program for multiple certifications & continuing education credits. No 

cost to the Town. 

3. Safety Meeting scheduled for Tuesday, May 24, 2022, Public Works Safety Officer (Public Works 

Director).  

4. Irrigation maintenance and repairs training by BrightView landscaping. No cost to the Town. 

5. Lift Stations Pumps and Valves training by PSI Technologies. No cost to the Town. 

 

Updates:  

 

1. AT&T Project. 

2. Watermain Project.  

3. The Iguana Extermination program has proven to be a successful program. Public Works Staff was on 

the Inlet Park Thursday, May 5, 2022, to Friday, May 13, 2022. The Inlet Residents have been of great 

assistance with reporting the times and locations of the Iguanas on the Inlet rock seawall. A total of 33 

Iguanas have been exterminated at this time. Total Males = 13 Total Females = 20.    

       

  

  

 

 

 



                                                              
TOWN CLERK REPORT 

March 2022  

April 25 ,2022 Commission Meeting 

TASKS STATUS 

Upcoming 

Meetings and 

Important Dates 

➢ P&Z Meeting and LPA Meeting May 25, 2022 @ 6:30 pm  
➢ Commission Workshop June 13, 2022 @ 7:00 pm   
➢ Commission Meeting June 27, 2022 @ 7:00 pm  
➢ Blue Heron Bridge- East and Westbound Single Lane Closures May 31-June 3 and 

June 6 – June 10 from 8-5  

Building 

Department 

Updates 

       April 2022:   Total Permits issued:  24   
       Total Permit Fees Paid: $ 19,972.00 

Reminder: Working without a permit with result in a stop work order and a        
charge of 4 times the permit fee. Unsure if you need a permit, call the Building 
Department and we’ll be glad to help you.   

Code Compliance The following is a count of properties that had Code Enforcement violations from April 21, 
2022 – May 20, 2022   
 
Code Violation: Sec. 38-9. – Collections times; notice.                 
Yard debris, bulk and trash/garbage being placed out for pickup days before the 
scheduled pickup date.   1 Closed. 0 Open. 
Code Violation: Sec. 18-329. – Property Maintenance. 
1 Closed.   0 Open.   
Code Violation: Sec. 14-106. Florida Building Code (Structural Engineering Report for the 
condition of the building) 0 Closed.  
3 Open. 101 Edwards Ln, 220 Inlet Way 115 Inlet Way  
Code Violation: Sec. 14-106. Florida Building Code (Work without a permit)  
0 Closed. 1 Open. 100 Bravado Lane Unit 6  
Code Violation: Sec. 42-41. Noise Disturbances. 
0 Closed. 1 Open. 218 Cascade Lane  
Code Violation: Sec. 70-82. – Boat trailer in driveway/parking lot.  
1 Closed. 1 Open. 327 Edwards Lane 
Code Violation: Sec. 18-24. Transfer of Business Tax Receipt/ Certificate of Use 
3 Closed 0 Open  
Code Violation: Sec 58-53 Temporary Signage 
4 Closed  0 Open  
Code Violation: Pf.5.13. Off-street parking: 
0 Closed 1 Open 218 Cascade Lane 
Code Violation: Sec 38-3 Trash containers location 
0 Closed 1 Open 231 Bamboo Road 
 
Total Amount of Cases created that are closed from 4/21/22 – 5/20/2022: 10              
Total Amount of Cases created that are still open from 4/21/22 – 5/20/2022: 8 
Total count of Cases 4/21/22 – 5/20/2022   18 
 
Special Magistrate 
218 Cascade Lane – Parking on the grass (Scheduled for June 15, 2022) 
218 Cascade Lane – Noise nuisance  
Delinquent Business tax Receipt Fine Hearing (Scheduled for June 15,2022) 
22 Cases. 

•  

TOWN HALL • Town Hall is open 8:30 am to 4:30 pm.  

• Beach Parking Decals for the FY 2022-2023 are available for sale. Please make sure 
you bring you vehicle tag information (License Plate) and Current one year lease if you 
are a renter.  Cash (small bills please) Check or Credit Card (2.5% fee added) 
accepted.   

• All Town meetings will continue to be offered virtually via WebEx (see Town's website: 
www.palmbeachshoresfl.us for information on all meetings).  

 



 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R- 07-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF PALM 
BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, CREATING AN AD HOC COMMITTEE ON 
INLET PARK ENCROACHMENTS; PROVIDING FOR COMMITTEE 
COMPOSITION, AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITIES; PROVIDING FOR 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS; PROVIDING FOR SUNSET OF SAID 
COMMITTEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Palm Beach Shores owns park land adjacent to the Palm 

Beach / Lake Worth Inlet which has generally been developed as a passive park known as 

the Inlet Park; and  

WHEREAS, adjacent to such Town owned park land are various residential 

properties with addresses on both Inlet Way and Lake Drive; and   

WHEREAS, a number of these residential properties have, over the course of years, 

developed encroachments into the Town owned park land which consist of landscape 

materials, sitting areas, parking lots, shuffleboard courts, a swimming pool and other 

accessory structures; and   

WHEREAS, the swimming pool, pool house, and associated parking area 

encroachments associated with the Romaine property at 320 Inlet Way are permitted by 

long term lease agreement between the Town and the Romaine, and which does not 

terminate until 2057; however, no other encroachments into the Town owned park land at 

the Inlet Park have been formally authorized or memorialized; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission previously in the year 2010 took the position that 

all encroachments could remain “as-is” so long as certain conditions were met by the 

adjacent residential properties, most of which have not occurred; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has recently revisited the issue of the 

encroachments into the Town owned park land at the Inlet Park; and 

WHEREAS, to assist with finally resolving the encroachment issues, the Town 

Commission desires to create an ad hoc committee on Inlet Park encroachments; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to provide for the Committee’s 

composition, its authority & responsibilities, its compliance with applicable laws, and its 

sunset.  



 
 

2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1: The above stated recitals are true and accurate and are hereby made 

part of this Resolutions.  

Section 2: The Town Commission of the Town of Palm Beach Shores, Florida, 

hereby provides for the “Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park 

Encroachments”.  The Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park 

Encroachments shall be composed of up to five (5) members.  The initial members of the 

Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park Encroachments, appointed 

by the Town Commission in conjunction with the establishment of the committee, are as 

follows: 

1.______________________________________________  

2.______________________________________________  

3.______________________________________________  

4.______________________________________________  

5.______________________________________________  

Committee members shall serve at the pleasure of the Town Commission until they are 

removed by the Town Commission, or until they voluntarily resign their seat, or until the 

committee is dissolved pursuant to Section 6 of this resolution.  Vacancies on the 

Committee may be filled via appointment by the Town Commission if needed.   

Section 3: The Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park 

Encroachments shall hold public meetings for the purpose of developing recommendations 

to resolve the issue of the existing encroachments into the Town owned park land at the 

Inlet Park.  The encroachments which are the subject of the lease agreement between the 

Romaine and the Town, adjacent to the Romaine property at 320 Inlet Way are excluded 

from the Committee’s jurisdiction since these encroachments are already memorialized by 

said lease agreement.  The primary focus of the Committee shall be the existing 

encroachments adjacent to the Anchorage property located at 340 Lake Drive; said 

encroachments consisting primarily of vegetation buffers, a shuffleboard court, a parking 

and turn-around lot, and an accessory shed.  The Committee may also review the 



 
 

3 
 

remaining minor encroachments east of the Romaine encroachments but only after 

completing its work relative to the Anchorage property encroachments which are located 

west of the Romaine encroachments.  The Committee should make every effort to engage 

both the general Town population, and the Anchorage resident population in formulating its 

recommendations.  Similar engagements should be sought to the extent the Committee 

also reviews other encroachments adjacent to properties east of the Romaine.   

Section 4:   The Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park 

Encroachments shall report to the Town Commission no later than September 30, 2022 

with its final recommendations.  

Section 5: The Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park 

Encroachments shall appoint from among its membership a Chair and a Vice-Chair, and 

shall establish its own rules of procedure; however any such rules shall comply with and be 

subject to the Florida Government in the Sunshine laws and the Florida Public Records Act. 

 Additionally, all committee members shall be bound by the Florida Code of Ethics and the 

Palm Beach County Code of Ethics for appointed officials.  

Section 6:   The Town of Palm Beach Shores Ad-Hoc Committee on Inlet Park 

Encroachments shall continue until such time as the Town Commission shall deem the 

committee to no longer be required and dissolve same.     

Section 7: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 



First Reading April 25, 2022 

 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-2-22 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 14. 
BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS. ARTICLE III BUILDING 
STANDARDS. SEC. 14-108 LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 1 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE ADOPTED. 
SECTION 109 FEES. BY REQUIRING ADJUSTMENTS TO PERMIT 
FEES PAID PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CO OR EQUIVALENT IN 
ORDER TO ENSURE PAYMENT OF CORRECT FEES;  PROVIDING 
THAT EACH AND EVERY OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF 
CHAPTER 14 SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS 
PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Palm Beach Shores desires to 

ensure payment of correct building permit fees for all Town issued building permits; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Palm Beach Shores has 

determined that requiring adjustments to initial permit fees prior to the issuance of a CO 

or equivalent based on owner and contractor certification of all sums and consideration 

paid and payable for the construction activity is an appropriate manner of accomplishing 

this.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

Section 1: Chapter 14. Buildings and Building Regulations. of the Code of 

Ordinances of the Town of Palm Beach Shores is hereby amended at Article III. Building 

Standards. Sec. 14-108. Local Amendments to Chapter 1. Administration of the Florida Building 

Code Adopted.  Section 109 FEES, by amending subsection 109.3 Building Permit Valuations by 

requiring adjustments to permit fees paid prior to issuance of a CO or equivalent in order to ensure 

payment of correct fees;  providing that subsection 109.3 Building Permit Valuations shall 

hereafter read as follows: 

CHAPTER 14. BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 
ARTICLE III BUILDING STANDARDS 

SEC. 14-108. LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 1. ADMINISTRATION OF THE 
FLORIDA BUILDING CODE ADOPTED 

SECTION 109 
FEES 



First Reading April 25, 2022 

 

2 
 

 

109.3 Building permit valuations.  

(1) Prior to permit issuance. Proof of the total valuation of construction activity 

(building, alteration, structure, electrical, gas, mechanical and/or plumbing systems)  for 

permit fee cost valuation purposes may be established by the permit applicant via 

submission to the Building Official of a written, signed and notarized construction 

contract or by the submission of an affidavit by the subject property owner supported by 

an attached copy of the construction contract. If there is no written construction contract, 

then the contractor or the owner must submit a specific description of all construction 

activity contemplated, all consideration to be paid therefor and the value thereof; which 

description shall be certified in writing under oath by both the contractor and the owner. 

If the permit applicant fails to make such submission, waives making such submission, 

requests issuance of the permit without making such submission, or otherwise fails to 

submit sufficient evidence of cost valuation, then the building official shall determine the 

total valuation of construction activity for permit fee cost valuation purposes based on 

his experience, his knowledge of then current market conditions, and the information 

contained in the submitted permit application.  If, in the opinion of the building official, 

the claimed valuation of building, alteration, structure, electrical, gas, mechanical or 

plumbing systems appears to be underestimated on the application, the permit shall be 

denied, unless the applicant can show detailed, quantity estimates, and/or bona fide 

signed contracts (excluding land value) to meet the approval of the building official. For 

permitting purposes, valuation of buildings and systems shall be total replacement value 

to include structural, electric, plumbing, mechanical, interior finish, relative site work, and 

overhead and profit; excluding only land value and demolition.  Valuation references may 

include the latest published data of national construction cost analysis services (Marshall-

Swift, Means, etc.), as published by International Code Congress.  Final building permit 

valuation shall be set by the building official. 

(2)  Adjustment to permit fee prior to CO or equivalent. Upon application for 

final inspections and a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) or equivalent, both the owner and 

the contractor to whom the permit is issued shall certify in writing under oath to the 

Building Official all sums and consideration paid and payable for the construction 

activity. No final inspections shall be made, and no CO or equivalent shall be issued for 



First Reading April 25, 2022 

 

3 
 

any construction related activity unless it is determined by the Building Official that 

construction activity actually performed conforms to, is not more or greater than, and 

does not substantially (ten (10) percent or more) exceed valuation of that activity 

contemplated in the permit application(s); if such determination is not made, then no 

final inspection and no CO or shall be given until all approvals and permits therefor have 

been secured and all permit fees applicable thereto have been paid. 

 

Section 2: Each and every other section and subsection of Chapter 14. 

Buildings and Building Regulations. shall remain in full force and effect as previously 

adopted. 

 

Section 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict be and the same are 

hereby repealed. 

 

Section 4: Should any section or provision of this Ordinance or any portion 

thereof, any paragraph, sentence or word be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction 

to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 5: Specific authority is hereby granted to codify this Ordinance. 

Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 

 FIRST READING this 25th day of April, 2022. 
  
 SECOND AND FINAL READING this 23rd day of May, 2022.  
       
  
 TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES 
      
            
     _____________________________ 
     Alan Fiers, Mayor 
 

 
 
 
 
 



First Reading April 25, 2022 

 

4 
 

ATTEST: 
     
              
_____________________________ 
Jude Goudreau, Town Clerk    
 
 
(Seal) 

 
 

 
 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency. 
 

 
_____________________________ 
Keith W. Davis, Town Attorney 

 
 

 



Page 1 of 5 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-3-22 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, AMENDING APPENDIX A. ZONING 
AT SECTION IV. BASIC RESTRICTIONS FOR ALL DISTRICTS. AT 
PF.4.6. GRADE ELEVATIONS. TO ALLOW ADDITIONS TO SINGLE-
FAMILY STRUCTURES IN ZONING DISTRICT A TO MATCH THE 
EXISTING GRADE AND FINISHED FIRST FLOOR ELEVATIONS 
SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS AND AT SECTION XIII. 
NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS AND USES. AT PF. 13.2. 
NONCONFORMING BUILDINGS. TO ADD AN ALLOWANCE FOR 
ADDITIONS TO SINGLE-FAMILY HOUSES IN ZONING DISTRICT A TO 
BE BUILT TO MATCH THE NONCONFORMING GRADE AND FINISHED 
FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION; PROVIDING THAT EACH AND EVERY 
OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF APPENDIX A SHALL REMAIN 
IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED; 
PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND 
AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, current Zoning Code regulations require that all structure additions 

meet current grade and finished first floor elevations, which are based on the property’s 

mean crown of the adjacent roadway; and 

WHEREAS, the original housing stock in Zoning District A was constructed prior 

to the Town’s grade and finished first floor regulations, meaning that in nearly all cases, 

the current Code required grade and finished floor elevations for proposed additions are 

several inches higher than the existing elevations of the onsite structure; and  

WHEREAS, in recent months, multiple variance requests have been requested 

and processed requesting relief from the above-referenced requirements to prevent 

additional square footage added to existing structures from having to be built with a step 

up to the addition. 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Palm Beach Shores believes 

these amendments to the Town’s Zoning Code are in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the Town, its citizens, and all those doing business with the Town. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

Section 1: Appendix A. Zoning. of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Palm 

Beach Shores is hereby amended at Section IV. Basic Restrictions for All Districts. to 



Page 2 of 5 
 

amend Pf. 4.6. Grade elevations. to allow additions to single-family structures in Zoning 

District A to match the existing grade and finished first floor elevation subject to certain 

restrictions; providing that Pf. 4.6. shall hereafter read as follows: 

 

Pf. 4.6. - Grade elevations. 

a.  Generally, the grade elevation of any building site at the building foundation, and 

to a minimum distance of two (2) feet from the foundation outwards, shall be a 

minimum of one and one-half (1½) feet and a maximum of two (2) feet above the 

mean elevation of the crown of the adjacent street or streets, except that in the 

event of construction of an addition to a single-story structure located in Zoning 

District A which contains no portion of the parcel located in a Special Flood Hazard 

Area, an area not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the square footage of the existing 

structure shall be allowed to be constructed to match the existing grade elevation.  

b.  However, for any single story structure in Zoning District B, C or D that utilizes 

underground/depressed parking pursuant to Pf. 12.6 to contain all required parking 

for residents of the structure, the grade elevation at the building foundation, and to 

a minimum distance of two (2) feet from the foundation outwards, may be 

increased to a maximum of three (3) feet above the mean elevation of the crown 

of the adjacent street or streets.  

c.  For any multiple story structure in Zoning District B, C or D that utilizes 

underground/depressed parking pursuant to Pf. 12.6 to contain all required parking 

for residents of the structure, the grade elevation at the building foundation, and to 

a minimum distance of two (2) feet from the foundation outwards, must be three 

(3) feet above the mean elevation of the crown of the adjacent street or streets. All 

ingress and egress ways for the underground/depressed parking level shall retain 

the grade slope to the greatest extent possible. Where necessary to facilitate the 

underground/depressed parking level, retaining walls may be utilized to comply 

with grade elevation requirements, however, the use of any such retaining wall 

must be specifically approved by the Planning and Zoning Board as part of the site 

plan review process.  

https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_beach_shores/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_APXAZOOR_SXIIGEPR_PF._12.6UNDEPA
https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_beach_shores/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_APXAZOOR_SXIIGEPR_PF._12.6UNDEPA


Page 3 of 5 
 

d.  The elevation of the finished first floor of any building shall be a minimum of one-

half (½) feet and a maximum of one and one-half (1 ½) feet above the highest 

grade elevation of the building site or no less than the 100-year flood level, 

whichever is the highest, except that in the event of construction of an addition to 

a single-story structure located in Zoning District A which contains no portion of 

the parcel located in a Special Flood Hazard Area, an area not to exceed fifty 

percent (50%) of the square footage of the existing structure shall be allowed to 

be constructed to match the existing finished first floor. However, for any multiple 

story structure in Zoning District B, C or D that utilizes underground/depressed 

parking pursuant to Pf. 12.6 to contain all required parking for residents of the 

structure, the elevation of the finished first floor of the building shall be no higher 

than seven (7) feet above the mean elevation of the crown of the street at the front 

of the lot. All ingress and egress ways for the first floor shall be set at or between 

the grade elevation at the building foundation, and the elevation of the finished first 

floor.  

e.  At the boundary lines, the building site shall be graded to a reasonable match with 

abutting properties. The balance of the building site, including all surface parking 

areas, shall be graded from the high level located two (2) feet outward from the 

building foundation to the low levels at the boundary lines, with a continuous 

gradual slope.  

 

Section 2: Appendix A. Zoning. of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Palm 

Beach Shores is hereby amended at Section XIII. Nonconforming Buildings and Uses. to 

amend Pf. 13.2. Nonconforming buildings. to add an allowance for additions to single-

family houses in Zoning District A to be built to match the nonconforming grade and 

finished first floor elevation; providing that Pf. 13.2. shall hereafter read as follows: 

 

Pf. 13.2. - Nonconforming buildings. 

Where a lawful building exists at the effective date of adoption or amendment of this 

zoning ordinance that could not be built under the terms of this zoning ordinance by 

reason of restrictions on area, lot coverage, height, yards, setbacks or other 

https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_beach_shores/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_APXAZOOR_SXIIGEPR_PF._12.6UNDEPA


Page 4 of 5 
 

characteristics of the building or its location on the lot, such building may be continued so 

long as it remains otherwise lawful subject to the following provisions:  

(a) No such building may be enlarged or altered in any way which increases its 

nonconformity, except for single family dwellings located in any zoning district 

which may be altered as follows:  

1. Ground floor additions or renovations to existing one-story single family 

dwellings may be built to match nonconforming setbacks or nonconforming roof 

pitches existing at the point where the proposed addition/renovation will adjoin 

the existing building; however, any such addition must otherwise conform to all 

applicable zoning codes, and particularly shall not cause the building to violate 

the applicable maximum lot coverage limits, maximum allowed flat roof area, 

maximum building height or minimum landscape requirements.  

2. Ground floor additions to existing one-story single-family dwellings in Zoning 

District A may be built to match nonconforming grade and finished first floor 

elevations subject to the restrictions set forth in Pf. 4.6. 

32. Any second story addition or renovation may be built to match nonconforming 

roof pitches existing at the point where the proposed addition/renovation will 

adjoin the existing building, but otherwise shall conform to all applicable zoning 

codes.  

(b) Should such building be destroyed by any means to an extent of more than fifty 

(50) percent of its replacement cost at the time of destruction, as determined by 

the town building official, it shall not be reconstructed except in conformity with the 

provisions of this zoning ordinance; except in cases of fire, explosion or other 

casualty, or act of God, or the public enemy, in which case the structure may be 

replaced as it was originally constructed.  

(c) Should any structure be moved for any reason for any distance whatsoever, it shall 

thereafter conform to the regulations for the district in which it is located after it is 

moved.  

Section 3: Each and every other section and subsection of Appendix A. Zoning. 

shall remain in full force and effect as previously adopted. 

Section 4: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict be and the same are 

hereby repealed. 



Page 5 of 5 
 

Section 5: Should any section or provision of this Ordinance or any portion 

thereof, any paragraph, sentence or word be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction 

to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 6: Specific authority is hereby granted to codify this Ordinance. 

Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

 

 FIRST READING this ____ day of April, 2022. 

 SECOND AND FINAL READING this ____ day of May, 2022.  

       

 TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES 

      

             
      ______________________________ 
      Alan Fiers, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     
              
_________________________ 
Jude Goudreau, Town Clerk   (Seal) 
 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency. 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Davis, Town Attorney 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

ORDINANCE NO. O-4-22 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 78. 
VEGETATION. AT ARTICLE III. LANDSCAPING., SECTION 78-77.1. – 
DESIGN GUIDELINES. TO REQUIRE THE INSTALLATION OF 
ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPING PLACED INTERMITTENTLY AGAINST 
LONGER EXPANSES OF BUILDING WALLS WITH LITTLE 
ARCHITECTURAL DETAIL TO BREAK UP THE WALLS FOR MULTI-
STORY STRUCTURES IN ALL ZONING DISTRICTS; PROVIDING THAT 
EACH AND EVERY OTHER SECTION AND SUBSECTION OF CHAPTER 
78 SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AS PREVIOUSLY 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING A CONFLICTS CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE AND AUTHORITY TO CODIFY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, currently Section 78-77.1 of the Town Code requires the installation 

of landscaping for multi-story structures to provide adequate privacy screening for 

windows located on higher stories to screen views to adjacent properties; and  

WHEREAS, there are no current regulations to require landscaping for these 

structures where no windows are present and no privacy screening is required; and 

WHEREAS, with the prevalence of redevelopment in Town to include the 

construction of larger two-story residential structures, there is a need to revise the Town 

Code to increase the landscaping requirements for these and other multi-story structures 

to ensure that adequate landscaping is installed to soften larger walls with minimal 

architectural features; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Palm Beach Shores believes 

these amendments to the Town’s Zoning Code are in the best interest of the health, safety 

and welfare of the Town, its citizens, and all those doing business with the Town. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

Section 1: Chapter 78. Vegetation. of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of 

Palm Beach Shores is hereby amended at Article III. Requirements., Section 78-77.1. – 

Design Guidelines. to, for multi-story structures in all Zoning Districts, require additional 

landscaping to be placed intermittently against longer expanses of building walls with little 

architectural detail to break up the walls; providing that Section 78-77.1 shall hereafter 

read as follows: 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Sec. 78-77.1. - Design guidelines. 

(a) Foundation plantings. Foundation plantings for all new construction are required 

on any side of a building that fronts on a street. Required foundation plantings 

should conceal the building foundation, should accentuate and beautify the front 

facade and should be a minimum of three feet in height at maturity.  

(b) Front yard trees. For all new development projects and new landscape plans, a 

minimum of three trees that comply with the requirements of article IV hereinbelow 

shall be required in the front yard. The minimum height of such required trees when 

planted shall be 75 percent of the beam height of the principal building. The 

minimum spread of such required trees when planted shall be 40 percent of the 

required tree height. In addition, three palm trees per platted lot shall be required 

to be planted in the ten-foot strip of town property a distance of four feet from the 

edge of pavement on all east-west roads in the town. Permitted palm tree species 

include Foxtail, Coconut, Queen, Triangle, Christmas, Date, Fishtail, Royal, Sago, 

or any other species specifically approved by the planning and zoning board as 

part of its architectural and aesthetic review.  

(c) Multi-story structures, softening of walls. For multi-story structures in all zoning 

districts, landscaping, trees and other plant material, shall be placed intermittently 

against long expanses of building walls to create a softening effect and to help 

break up longer expanses of blank walls with little architectural detail.  

(d)(c) Landscape buffering of equipment. For all new development projects, central air 

conditioning equipment, swimming pool equipment, emergency electrical 

generators, and outdoor trash containers located in accordance with the town's 

Zoning Ordinance and other applicable codes shall be sight screened with 

appropriate landscaping material.  

(e)(d) Privacy screens, applicability. In zoning districts A and B, all new development 

projects located on non-waterfront properties shall be subject to the privacy screen 

requirements set forth in paragraph (e) below. In zoning district B, the following 

shall also trigger the applicability of the privacy screen requirements set forth in 

paragraph (e) below:  



Page 3 of 4 
 

(1) Any activity or activities upon the lot over time requiring a permit or permits from 

the town pertaining to improvements that cumulatively amount to expenditures 

of money in excess of $50,000.00.  

(2) Any change in use of the property.  

(f)(e) Privacy screens, requirements. Rear and side yard privacy screens are 

permitted, but not required with single story principal buildings. When the principal 

building is a two-story building rear and side yard privacy screens are required. 

Such privacy screens should generally be of sufficient height and density to screen 

the line of sight from second story balconies and windows into neighboring 

properties, however, the minimum height of trees utilized for rear yard privacy 

screens when planted shall be no less than 75 percent of the roof height of the 

principal building. As part of the architectural and aesthetic review pursuant to 

section 14-86, the planning and zoning board shall ensure that these requirements 

are met and that the privacy of properties adjacent to two-story buildings is 

protected. No trees shall be permitted to grow into overhead utility lines.  

 

Section 2: Each and every other section and subsection of Chapter 78. 

Vegetation. shall remain in full force and effect as previously adopted. 

Section 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict be and the same are 

hereby repealed. 

Section 4: Should any section or provision of this Ordinance or any portion 

thereof, any paragraph, sentence or word be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction 

to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 5: Specific authority is hereby granted to codify this Ordinance. 

Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

 

 FIRST READING this ____ day of May, 2022. 

 SECOND AND FINAL READING this ____ day of June, 2022.  

       

  

 

https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_beach_shores/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH14BUBURE_ARTIIAD_DIV5ARAERE_S14-86TOPLZOBOCOARAERE
https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_beach_shores/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH14BUBURE_ARTIIAD_DIV5ARAERE_S14-86TOPLZOBOCOARAERE


Page 4 of 4 
 

 TOWN OF PALM BEACH SHORES 

      

             
      ______________________________ 
      Alan Fiers, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     
              
_________________________ 
Jude Goudreau, Town Clerk   (Seal) 
 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency. 
 
_________________________ 
Keith Davis, Town Attorney 
 
 


	Agenda Commissioner Meeting May 23 2022
	Minutes- Commissioner Meeting April 25 2022
	Town of Palm Beach Shores- Phillips and Jordan Agreement
	SWA- Phillips and Jordan-Executed- Back up Only
	Special Permit 22-05
	Page 1

	Financial Report 4 2022
	PBSO- May 2022 Commission report
	May commission report with the stats for April 2022
	District 20 Monthly - April 2022
	April D20 Arrest
	April D20 Mental
	April D20 Written Warnigs
	April D20 Verbal Warnings
	April D20 Citations

	Public Works Report Revised 5-23-22
	Clerk's report 05.20.2022
	R- 07-22 Ad Hoc Committee on Inlet Park Encroachments 
	Ord O-02-2022- Building Permit Fees
	Ord O-03-22 District A Grade Elevation Draft
	O-04-22 Landscape Code Revisions 2-Story Buildings

